TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE
Zoning Board of Adjustment

_ ; 9 South Main Street,
b Progress with Vision 4 Suite 110
[ (ncoparated 1671 g Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 * Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

Development Services Director

Board Members:

Joshua Morgan, Chairman Elizabeth Teague
Edward Moore, Vice Chairman
Henry Kidder Assistant Development Services Director
John Mason Olga Grooman
Sam Hyde (Alternate)
il TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

REGULAR MEETING

Town Hall — 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
Tuesday, March 4, 2025, 5:30 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER:
1. Welcome/Announcements/Introductions
2. Adoption of Minutes (as presented or amended):
e November 5, 2024, quasi-judicial training workshop
e Tuesday, December 3, 2024, regular meeting

B. BUSINESS ITEMS:

1. Vote to appoint one of the alternates as a regular Board Member.

2. Introduction to the Quasi-Judicial Handbook (2024 Edition) by the D. Owens & A.
Lovelady, in partnership with the UNC School of Government. Attached is an abstract on
Alternate Members.

C. ADJOURN.



WAYNESVILLE _

Progress with Vision

Board Members

Joshua Morgan, Chairman
Edward Moore, Vice Chairman
Henry Kidder

Judi Donovan

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

Zoning Board of Adjustment
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 e Fax (828) 452-1492
www.waynesvillenc.gov

Page 1 of 2

Development Services
Director
Elizabeth Teague

Assistant Development
Services Director
Olga Grooman

John Mason MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Sam Hyde (Alternate)

Regular Meeting
Town Hall — 9 South Main St., Waynesville, NC 28786
Tuesday November 5%, 2024

THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT did not hold a meeting on
Tuesday, November 5", 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Board Room at 9 South Main Street,
Waynesville, NC 28786, due to a lack of quorum. Instead, a Quasi-Judicial Training Workshop was held.
No business was conducted, and no action was taken.

The following Zoning Board of AdJustment members were present at the training:
Judi Donovan
John Mason

The following Plannmg Board members were present
Jan Grossman
Glnger Haln
The foIlowmg staff members were present
~ Olga Grooman, Assistant Development Services Director
Alex Mumby, Land Use Administrator
Tyler Anderson, Stormwater Management Coordinator
Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant

The following Attorney was present:
Ron Sneed, Attorney for the Board

The following Zoning Board of Adjustment members were absent:
Joshua Morgan, Chair
Henry Kidder
Edward Moore, Vice Chair
Sam Hyde

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
November 5%, 2024



5

Page 2 of 2

Assistant Development Services Director Olga Grooman introduced all the board members from the
Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment. The Boards’ attorney Ron Sneed led the training on
Quasi-Judicial Procedures.

Attorney Ron Sneed gave a Power Point presentation to all the board and staff members who were
present and answered their questions.

The training lasted 1 hour and 32 minutes, ending at 7:02 p.m.

Olga Grooman, Assistant Development
Service Director

E, Coulter, Administrative Assistant

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Mecting
November 5%, 2024



7

Page 1 of 6
Wl'\‘leanS\iIILLE WAYNESV
o 1 . .
See o, Zoning Board of Adjustment
Progress with Vision 9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786 Development Services
Phone (828) 456-8647 « Fax (828) 452-1492 . Director
Board Members www.waynesvillenc.gov Elizabeth Teague
Joshua Morgan, Chairman )
Edward Moore, Vice Chairman ASS;S:ar]t Degf.‘lm:ment
Henry Kidder rvices Director
Judi Donovan Olga Grooman
Jsz:]ﬁm&nemate] MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
yde
Carly Pugh (Alternate) Reglﬂar Meetlng

Town Hall — 9 South Main St., Waynesvﬂle, NC 28786
Tuesday December 3", 2024

THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT held a Regular Meeting
Tuesday December 3™, 2024, at 5:30 p m. in the Town Hall Board Room at 9 South Main Street,
Waynesville, NC. 28786.

A. CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome/Calendmj/Announcements

The following members were present:
Joshua Morgan, Chair
Sam Hyde :
Henry Kidder
John Mason
Carly Pugh

The following members were absent:
Edward Moore, Vice Chair
Judi Donovan

The following staff were present:
Olga Grooman, Assistant Development Services Director
Alex Mumby, Land Use Administrator
Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant

The following Attorney waw present:
Ron Sneed, Attorney for the Board

Chairman Joshua Morgan welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 5:29 p.m. Mr. Morgan
introduced the new Zoning Board of Adjustment member Carly Pugh.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



5

Page 2 of 6
Assistant Development Services Director Olga Grooman made the announcement that no applications
had been received for next month’s agenda.

A motion was made by Board member John Mason, seconded by Board member Carly Pugh, to
approve the August 15, 2024, minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

Chairman Joshua Morgan read through the process and procedures for the Quasi-Judicial Public
Hearings. All parties were sworn in. The board members had no conflicts of interest.

Chairman Joshua Morgan opened the public hearing at 5:38 p.ms
B. BUSINESS:

1. A variance to allow the reconstruction of a5
requiring a deviation from the setbacks esis
Density District, for the property at 90 Chel

Standards Sections 2.4.1 and 13.7.

= 5 seeking a variance from the LDS section 13.7 that specifically
requires the reconstructiorn= re-existing nonconforming buildings to comply with the current
dimensional standards of the Zening district, such as setbacks. Mr. Lilly proposes to construct a single-
family home with “880 square feet on the main level and 963 square feet on the second level, with the
proposed design contained within the footprint of the existing structure.” Ms. Grooman said the house
will be moved 7 ft back on the lot, which will be in better conformity with the current zoning because
front and rear 20-ft setbacks will be compliant,

Ms. Grooman explained that the area surrounding the lot is densely developed, with adjacent properties
also having sizes and densities exceeding the current zoning standards. She stated that the lot was in the

Zoning Board of Adjustment Mimutes
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



)

Page 3 of 6
100-year floodplain, and the new house must meet all floodplain requirements, such as elevation above
the base flood level, which would make it safer,

Mr. Grooman stated that the applicant offers the following comments regarding the findings that must
be considered by the Zoning Board of Adjustment:

a) Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the regulation. It is not necessary
to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.

The lot is only 43 feet wide by 74.5 feet long. The applicant i
the newly proposed structure will respect the district’s front
condition of the property.

hcreasing non-compliance. In fact,
setbacks and improve the existing

b) The hardship results from conditions that are
topography. Hardships resulting from person

The property is a pre-existing nonconfo
It is also located within the 100-year

ariance aligns with the surrounding
for in-fill re-development.

the spirit, purpose, and intent of the regulation, such that
ustice is achieved.

be positioned in the center o respect neighbors’ privacy, and the applicant intends to live in it.
Items Entered as Evidence:
1. Staff Report
LDS Sections 13.7 and 2.4.1
Application materials with payment
Maps: property, zoning, floodplain, street view
Public notices
Town of Waynesville LDS, NC Building and Fire Codes, and NC GS 160D by reference

A

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes k
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



e

Page 4 of 6

The Board asked Ms. Grooman for a few clarifications.

The Applicant Scott Lilly said that his architect, Andy Bailey, still has a few things to fix on the plans.
Mr. Lilly stated that the demolition of the old house will take place in January 2025,

A motion was made by Board member John Mason, seconded by Board member Sam Hyde, to close
the public hearing at 6:05 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

The board deliberated.

y Board member John Mason, to
hardships as presented. The motion

ating that the propetty is a 0.47-acre
ction of the lot to minimize disturbance

and 25 feet from the property line. The site
slope regulations,

by preserving natural features like trees, plants, and rock
S Section 12.6.3).

b) The hardship results itions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or
topography. Hardships ve from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from
conditions that are commot to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for
granting a variance. 4 variance may be granted when necessary and appropriate to make a
reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act for a person with a disability.

The platted right-of-way extends 12 feet from the paved right-of-way. Without a variance, the house
must be built 26 feet from the paved roadway. With the variance, the house will be 16 feet from the
paved roadway.

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



3

Page 5 0f 6

¢) The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a
variance is not a self-created hardship.

The current property owner purchased the lot as it is now, and so the hardship is not self-created.

d) The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the regulation, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

and land to the rear of the proposed
rcumstances, however, would the
-way or interfere with other adjacent

The setback variance would allow the builder to preserve vegetat
building and to minimize the use of fill on the slope. Undersh
proposed building be allowed to encroach into the platted i
properties and the use and access to other lots.

- Ttems Entered as Evidence:

e Staff Report

e Application with payment
e Town of Waynesville LDS sections 2.4.1 an
s Maps =

¢ Site images
¢ Public notices
Town of Waynegvi

e board the steepness of the property’s slopes
ferenced the site plan on page 44 of the agenda
y minimize the disturbance to the land to avoid erosion and
lained thatithe retaining wall will be 13 ft tall and 12-14 inches thick
ariance would allow for a smaller retention wall.

with 8-10 ft deptirforstability.

Public Comment

The applicant’s neighbor MikezWallace explained to the board he used to build skyscrapers. Mr. Wallace
said that the home needs to be closer to the road, and the retaining wall’s fill is very important. His
concern is that there will be no room for parking for famlly, visitors, and delivery trucks, He said there
are no shoulders on either side of the road.

John, another neighbor, said his concern is that when turning onto the narrow street, there is 5 ft of land
from the edge of road to where the slope starts, He said there is no room to park on the road. He also
shared concerns about the future house sliding down the hill as it’s happened before in the neighborhood.

Zomng Board of AdJustment Mmutes ‘
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



S

Page 6 of 6
Chairman Joshua Morgan wanted some clarification regarding the requirements for impervious surface
under the steep slope regulations (LDS 12.6.4),

Board Member Sam Hyde requested clarification on whether the intent of the ordinance would be less
effectively served if the structure were 10 feet closer to the right-of-way.

Mr, Mumby said if the variance was denied the applicant may come back and ask for a variance from
the steep slope ordinance.

A motion was made by Board member John Mason, second,
close the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. The motion carried u

¥ Board member Henry Kidder, to

The Board deliberated.

Board Member Henry Kidder made a motion, sec¢
Jfirst hardship criterion for the variance as presén

1ember Carl h, to approve the

' The motion passed unanimously.

ember Sam Hyde, to approve the
tion passed unanimousiy.

member Carly Pugh, to approve the
by staff. The motion passed unanimously.

econded by Board member Henry Kidder, to
including the 4 hardships. The motion carvied

d the meeting at 7:31 p.m.

Joshua Morgan, Chairman Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant

Zoning Board of Adjustment Minutes
Regular Meeting
December 3, 2024



Chapter2 | Organization of the Board of Adjustment

Finally, the General Statutes specify that the extraterritorial members
should be residents of the extraterritorial area. If an insufficient number
of area residents are willing to be appointed, the county commissioners
may appoint other county residents to fill the needed number of seats, The
statute does not require that these appointees reside outside the city, only
that they be residents of the county.

The municipal development regulation determines the matters on
which the extraterritorial members are allowed to vote, If authorized by
the regulation, ET] members are allowed to vote on any and all matters
coming before the board. If the regulation does not so specify, ET] mem-
bers may vote only on matters arising within the extraterritorial area.

Alternate Members

The General Statutes allow but do not require boards of adjustment to have
alternate members.! This is a common and worthwhile practice, however.
If the development regulation provides for alternate members, they must
be appointed for the same terms, at the samé time, and in the same man-
ner as regular members.

Alternate members participate and vote on matters when a regular
member of the board is not available. It may be that a member is sim-
ply unable to attend a particular meeting. It also could be that a regular
member is present but has a conflict of interest on an individual case
and therefore is not allowed to participate in the matter. Or there may

e a vacant seat on the board. In any of these circumstances, an alternate

member allows the board to proceed and conduct its business with a full
complement of voting members, :

Having an alternate member available is particularly important when
hearing requests for variances. State law requires a four-fifths majority of
the board to grant a variance, not four-fifths of the members present at a
particular meeting.!? Thus, a five-member board with one person absent
and no alternate would be unable to achieve a four-fifths majority for
granting a variance without a unanimous vote; a 3 to 1 vote to grant the

variance would be insufficient. While the voting calculation is slightly .

different, the same practical problem arises when a member has a conflict

11. G.S. 160D-302(a).

1



Quasi-fudicial Handbook I ‘

of interest. That member’s seat is not counted in the calculation, but
the four-fifths requirement still applies. So, in the event that one mem-
ber of a five-member board has a conflict of interest, the applicant-must
get four-fifths of the four members who are eligible to vote, In that case,
a 3 to 1 vote in favor is only three-quarters of the four voters, not the
required four-fifths. Having an alternate member would restore the board
to having five votes in either circumstance, meaning that a unanimous
vote would not be necessary to grant a variance. In situations where a
unanimous vote would be necessary, many boards give the petitioner the
choice of continuing the hearing to a later date or proceeding with only
four voting members.

In addition, the use of alternates allows meetings, hearings, and deci-
sions to proceed in an orderly, predictable, and efficient fashion, Regular
members sometimes must be absent or have unavoidable conflicts, so hav-
ing no alternate member available can lead to meetings being canceled -
or delayed. For these reasons, most development regulations provide for
alternate members of boards of adjustment,

Some boards have their alternate members attend all meetings, while
others call them in only if it is clear that thelr participation will be needed.
Either practice is legally acceptable, but regular attendance by alternates
can be helpful for several reasons. First, it gives alternate members expo-
sure to the work of the board, :thereby helping them be better prepared
to act when needed. Second, the need for an alternate is sometimes not
known until the meeting itself. A regular member may have to miss the
meeting at the last minute. Or it may be at the hearing that a member
discovers a conflict of interest. Having an alternate member present and
ready to participate is useful in those sitwations,

There are multiple options for how to address the question of meaning-
fully engaging alternate members in the work of the board. One option is
to have a rolling alternate designation. Suppose there is a board with seven
voting members, Typically, there would be an additional one or two indi-
yiduals named as alternates who are always available but rarely needed, As
an alternative, the board could be appointed with nine full members who
rotate the responsibility of serving as alternate. For one case, members A
and B are designated as the alternates and the balance of the board serves
as the seven voting members. For the next case, members C and D are
designated as the alterriates, and so on. This option allows all members to



Chapter2 | Organization of the Board of Adjustment

regularly participate as voting members and ensures that there are always
alternates available in case of a conflict or an absence,

Regardless of how alternate members are involved in the board as a
whole over time, it is critical that each individual case be handled in a way
that protects the due process rights of all parties. An alternate member can
be called into service for an entire meeting or for a single case, If serving
for-a regular member who is absent, the alternate will fully participate
in all matters arising at that meeting, Conversely, if a regular member is
present but has a conflict of interest on one of several cases coming before
the board, the alternate will serve for only the one case involving that con-
flict, with the regular member resuming his or her seat for the other cases,
While serving for a regular member, the alternate member has the same
powers and duties as the regular member. It is perfectly acceptable for an
alternate member to observe the prodeedings, but active participation by
an alternate who is not serving on a given case raises due process problems
that are best avoided by having the alternate observe only.

. Provisions for appointing alternate membexs from inside both the city
and the extraterritotial jurisdiction, though not addressed by state statute,

are provided in many municipal development regulations, Such regulations

commonly specify that alternates from inside the city limits may serve only
to replace regular members from inside the city and that ETJ alternates
may serve only to replace ET] regular members, Given that the role of city/
- ETJalternates is not specified by statute, it is prudent to have municipal
development regulations include instructions on the matter,

Term of Office

The General Statutes require that board of adjustment members be
appointed to three-year terms of office,'* Members may be reappointed,
but each individual term must be for three years. A development regulation
may limit the number of consecutive terms an individual may serve, but
if there are no such limits in the development regulation, reappointment
is solely at the discretion of the appointing board. The three-year term
provision applies to alternate members as well.




